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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to the ownership of mineral rights of land inundated by Pick-Sloan Missouri 
project dams. 
 

Minutes:                                                 2 Attachments  

 
Chair Unruh: Opened the public hearing.  
 
Senator Brad Bekkedahl, District 1 (0:10-2:07) Introduced the bill, please see 
attachment #1.  This is to help clear up and audit problems they have, the department is 
trying to manage the resourses on behalf of the state of North Dakota at time they have some 
issues with that, Jodie Smith will be able to explain further how her department managed it. 
I know that Industry has some concerns with this bill, I’ve talked to them and asked them to 
be here today.  
 
Jodie Smith, Commissioner and Secretary, Board of University and School Lands 
(2:25-6:16) Testified in favor, please see attachment #2.  
 
Senator Piepkorn:  When we’re talking about Department of Land Trusts? 
 
Jodie Smith: Yes. 
 
Senator Piepkorn: Who are the lessees, why the slowness? Are they individuals, 
corporations? 
 
Jodie Smith: There are several reasons. We recognize there may be staffing issues with the 
operators, but when we’re been waiting years for compliance from our operators and we’re 
still unable to acquire the information we need. The only recourse that we have is to pull a 
lease, and that has direct implications on the economy of the state of North Dakota just 
because we have interest in so many wells. We really don’t have any other tools in our belt 
other than litigation or to pull the lease, so we’re looking for additional tools to work with the 
operators to make sure they come into compliance. The majority of them are in compliance, 
20% are struggling to provide us with the documentation necessary, we’d like to be able to 
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work with those operators and just penalize them for being out of compliance versus pulling 
the leases from.  
 
Ron Ness, North Dakota Petroleum Council (8:20) Testified in opposition. I started my 
career 30 years ago as a tax collector. We had people who didn’t pay their income, sales, 
withholding, tax. We had no tools such as a $5,000 per day fine, 31 days after the request. 
We were waiting years for major tax filings with other people’s money. This isn’t a tool; this 
is a sledgehammer. 30 days for these types of records. I suspect with a strong email we 
could make some headway with that 20% list. The people I reached out to had no idea. This 
is way above and beyond, there has to be a better way than $5,000 penalty per day starting 
on day 31. Some of these requests are quite big. We request support from federal agencies 
as well, and it takes an awful long time sometimes. I think it’s a wrong message to customers 
who contribute tens of thousands to billions of dollars into the trust fund, and we’re going to 
punish them at $5,000 a day or take their lease. I think there’s a better answer. I urge the 
agency to contemplate an amendment that provides them a tool not a sledgehammer. 
Without that we’re all in against this particular piece of legislation. 
 
Senator Piepkorn: I can understand the severity of the penalty, and you’re objecting to that, 
but this is news? That these lessees didn’t know they weren’t complying. 
 
Ron Ness: News to me. I’m not the one getting these notices. Some of them certainly know 
or don’t know. Imagine a system where you’re on day 5 of noncompliance, you own us 
$25,000. If we’re going to do this, let’s do it to all lessees. I assume farmers and ranchers 
who lease state lands have reports they have to file. I think everybody should get it. In 
addition, I believe the State Department of School Land Trusts has abandoned reclaimed 
lands, those have to be sent at a certain time, let’s charge them $5,000 a day for not following 
the mandate as well.  
 
No neutral agency testimony. 
 
Chair Unruh: Closed the public hearing.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to authorization for the board of university and schools lands to impose a civil 
penalty for failure to produce records; and to provide a penalty. 
 

Minutes:                                                 1 Attachment 

 
Chair Unruh: Let’s take a look at Senator Bekkedahl’s introduction to the bill, he talks about 
what it is and why it was necessary. It deals with mineral leasing with the Department of Trust 
Lands and their authority to examine records regarding determination of royalty payments 
and revenue compliance by the board. We heard from the Commissioner about how difficult 
it has been to get some of this information and payments from these companies, in order to 
get some of that information, they had proposed a $5000 per day fine until the records were 
made available. That was after 30 days of receiving notice from the board. What the 
amendments do (please see attachment #1), this was worked on extensively between 
industry and the Commissioner to try to come up with something that was feasible and 
reasonable. We didn’t quite get there, but we got close. What we have in the amendments is 
a reasonable proposal. We’ve extended the point where this kicks in from 30 days to 90 days, 
and reduced the fee to $1000 from $5000. This is in line with the fee in Texas. Every other 
state has some type of penalty for these types of violations, I think it’s appropriate for us to 
have something in code. I do think this is reasonable, although I’m sure it will continue to be 
worked on, if we get it passed out. 
 
Senator Piepkorn: Can you expound on what you mean when you say ‘we didn’t quite get 
there’? 
 
Chair Unruh: These amendments make both sides not super happy. Not that anybody is 
kicking and screaming, I didn’t get a green light from either party, but I didn’t get a huge red 
light from either party, either. Both were satisfactorily unsatisfied. 
 
Senator Piepkorn: That’s probably not a bad reaction.  
 
Senator Cook: I move to adopt the amendment ending in .01001. 
Senator Roers: I second. 
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A voice vote was taken.  
Motion carries. 
 
Senator Roers: Moved a Do Pass as Amended.  
Senator Piepkorn: I second. 
 
A roll call vote was taken. 
Motion passes 6-0-0. 
 
Senator Piepkorn will carry. 
Chair Unruh:  Closed the meeting.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to authorization for the board of university and school lands to impose a civil penalty 
for failure to produce records; and provide a penalty 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1,2 

 
Chairman Porter:  Opened the hearing on SB 2212. 
 
Sen. Bekkedahl:  Presented Attachment 1. 
 
Rep. Keiser I support the idea. I can’t believe we even have to do this. How big of a problem is 
this? 
 
Sen. Bekkedahl:  You’re right. 20% of these go non responded to.   
 
Jodi Smith, Commissioner of University and School Lands, ND Dept of Trust Lands:  
presented Attachment 2.  In support. 
 
12:20 
 
Rep. Keiser: if we cancel the lease, as I understand we might lose out.  What provision is 
there other than canceling the lease and they don’t willingly participate?    
 
Jodi Smith: There is none other than to take them to court through the litigation process.  
 
Rep. Keiser: But we could litigate and recover? 
 
Jodi Smith:  We could. 
 
Chairman Porter: Questions?  Further support?  Opposition? 
 
In opposition. 
 
Ron Ness, ND Petroleum Council:  We have been working trying to get the list of lessees. 
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Jodi Smith:  We have 80 operators.  We are currently in audit of 45 of those, 21% are out of 
compliance. When we are in an active audit we are not allowed to release that information. 
We try to partner with Ron Ness on these issues. 
 
Ron Ness:  80 operators, let say they’ve lease to someone else, who has leased to someone 
else… that person is no longer with the company. Once we’re able to find out who it is, the penalty 
even at $1000 a day has no appeal.  We’ve suggested certified letters. The Dept. of Mineral Trust, 
not a formal appeal process.   I think $1000 a day is too high. Maybe a 10 day notice that the 
penalty will begin in 60 days. We had looked at a judicial subpoena, more legal work for them but 
you do get your records.  
 
Rep. Keiser:  If I understood, School trust Lands, frequently only owns part of that total royalty of 
the payment.  Does that mean that the others are not being paid? 
 
Ron Ness:  It could be any fraction of any lease that is out there.  It could be sub divided, 
 sub divided and sub divided again.  This is just about audit records.   
 
Chairman Porter: questions?  Further testimony in opposition?  Commissioner please come back 
up here. 
 
18:00 
 
Jodi Smith:  It is a little bit complicated because we do receive payment.  We are auditing 
those payments. Sometimes we disagree with payments whether we believe we are being 
under paid.  Sometimes we are overpaid and we issue a refund back to the operator, based 
off our assessment of those royalty statements.  We try to work with the operators. 
 
Rep. Keiser: You said that if there’s an issue you’re in contact on a daily basis. If that’s true, why 
aren’t they sending in the information? 
 
Jodi Smith: Usually it works really well.  We do feel if we could assess a penalty that would be to 
our benefit.  Our goal is not to cancel a lease.  When we start cancelling those leases, it could 
have an impact on the taxes on the state of ND and the production that occurs here, so we 
are asking for another tool in our box and that we can work with all these operators and 
get them in compliance at this date.  
 
Chairman Porter: Mr. Ness brought up subpoenas.  Why not? 
 
Jodi Smith: That puts the burden on us and I’d like to keep us out of court.  The attorney general’s 
office would issue that, it’s not our first choice to do that. 
 
Rep Heinert:   Utilizing the courts, wouldn’t’ that put out word that you’re serious if you did that to a 
couple of them? 
 
Jodi Smith:  23:30    Recently we assessed a fee for $36,000 and they didn’t even call to 
negotiate. The midsize operators if you assess them and cancelling leases, word will get out we’re 
serious. 
 
Rep. Keiser:   When do you see assessing a fee?   
 
 
 
 



House Energy and Natural Resources Committee  
SB 2212 
3.7.19 
Page 3  
   

Jodi Smith:  Currently we send a certified letter to the operators, they have 90 days. After the 90 
days we don’t have any recourse if they’re not providing that material.  Under this new process    
 we would issue a letter and it would be delivered by certified mail.  They would have 60 business 
days to respond to that and get us the information. The board policy gives us a little room.  I would 
like to see an escalating fee.  I like the way Texas does this so for the first 30 or 60 days the fee 
would be at a lower amount and would escalate up to $1,000.  We would cap that at $300,000.  
We feel that it we would give them more than a year to get in compliance.  After they hit the cap of 
$300,000, we would pull their lease. 
 
Chairman Porter:  Are we to take your proposed amendments as he proposed negotiations 
between you and Mr. Ness? 
 
Jodi Smith:   Yes sir. 
 
Closed the hearing 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to authorization for the board of university and school lands to impose a civil penalty 
for failure to produce records; and provide a penalty 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Chairman Porter:  Opened the hearing on SB 2212.  Presented Attachment 1.  The Petroleum 
Council and the Land Department agreed to disagree all the way to the end. I had an amendment 
drafted and moved the 90 back to 60, put a maximum of $3000, and a subpoena power the board 
has. One of the things the commission asked for was the ability to do some of this outside of the 
board. All of the power in this chapter resides with the board and they have to assign the 
commissioner to do the work. None of the authority rests in the commissioner without going to the 
board.  It gives them a civil subpoena they can serve on the person who is not providing the 
requested information. 60 business days and max penalty. Discussion? 
 
Rep. Devlin:  They apparently don’t have subpoena power at this time? 
 
Chairman Porter: they do not. 
 
Rep. Devlin: what other agencies do we allow to have subpoena power or other state boards? 
 
Chairman Porter: I don’t have an answer for that. 
 
Rep. Keiser:  Very few. I can’t give you the list. 
 
Chairman Porter: Workers Comp does. The Insurance Commissioner does. 
 
Rep. Keiser:  Securities and Exchange. 
 
Chairman Porter: I would say also the regulatory like DEQ would have it to get records on a spill or 
hazardous incident. I was looking at it from a standpoint, apparently for some bad operators inside 
of their lease obligation with the state, the state wasn’t keen on canceling and going to the next 
level and the operators weren’t really keen on complying with their lease to give up the records. I 
thought one more tool in their toolbox would give them a little bit of a hammer before they outright 
cancel the lease for failure to comply. The audits are directly related to leases and operations where 
they want to look and make sure there isn’t an extra barrel going to their retirement fund that’s 
supposed to be paid out to the state. 
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Rep. Devlin:  If we didn’t give them this power, what would be their procedure? Go to the Attorney 
General?  This hasn’t come up very often in my legislative career and I’m a little uncomfortable. 
 
Chairman Porter: The procedure would be inside the existing law in 47-16.39 in the bill, they could 
take them for contract breach to district court.  In the testimony, what I’m trying to avoid is that they 
do that and hold them in breach and try to give them a tool to give them a little more muscle to get 
the requested records to do their job and audit.  They have one option now and that’s take them to 
court to get the records. We’re painting with a big brush for a couple bad actors.  
 
Rep. Keiser: I have some concerns as well. I wonder if we couldn’t restate it that the attorney 
general upon request of the board may, and leave the authority with the attorney general. That’s a 
legal question and maybe we can research it further to see if there’s an advantage to doing that 
because they have that authority upon the request of.  
 
Chairman Porter: My only argument is we’re not giving this authority to the commissioner, we’re 
giving the authority to the board and the attorney general sits on the board. To issue the civil 
subpoena is a board action after all of the methods have been exhausted.  
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  My concern is the idea that this is just a couple bad actors; from the testimony 
we heard that it was more than 20% of the lessors were out of compliance and the average length 
of being out of compliance was 422 days. I think this is a problem, some of the people gaming the 
system relating to unemployment insurance. I’m not saying everyone is doing that. It seems there’s 
no teeth for the Land Department to enforce or force these industries to comply. I’m wondering if we 
leave them with the subpoena power it’s better than nothing. I like the idea of a penalty and having 
an accumulative affect so there’s some incentive to not only comply but to comply quickly. If we’re 
talking about people, then 20% of the industry being more than a year out of compliance, we’re 
talking about people having something they’re trying to hide.  
 
Chairman Porter: further discussion?  We’ll lay this aside and get some answers on Rep. Keiser 
questions.  Closed the hearing. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to authorization for the board of university and school lands to impose a civil penalty 
for failure to produce records; and provide a penalty 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Chairman Porter:  Opened the hearing on SB 2212.   
 
Rep. Devlin:  presented Attachment 1- Amendment 19.0596.02002.  Met with the Attorney 
General’s office and the amendment was drafted by Legislative Council.  The original was for the 
board to have subpoena power and some of us resisted that. The attorney general said that wasn’t 
what they we’re looking for. He would bring a case if needed. They’re just trying to clean it up to get 
these records in order to get the payments. I think it’s self-explanatory.   The only thing the 
committee may want to talk about is the penalties in Subsection A are at $2000 a day. The original 
language was $1000 a day. That was a sum we talked about in his office. It’s up to this committee if 
it should be more or less.    
 
Chairman Porter:  we’re at a point where someone has refused all reasonable approaches to do 
what they’re mandated to do by law. $2000 per day is a hefty fine but they’re totally ignoring their 
contract.   
 
Rep. Devlin:  it also serves as a deterrent. I will move the Amendment 19.0596.02002. 
 
Rep. Keiser:  second. 
 
Chairman Porter:   we have a motion and a second to amendment SB 2212 with version 2002. 
Discussion?  Voice vote, motion carried. 
 
Rep. Devlin:  I would move a Do Pass as Amended SB 2212. 
 
Rep. Keiser:  second. 
 
Chairman Porter:   we have a motion and a second for a Do Pass as Amended to SB 2212. 
Discussion?   Roll call vote:  13 yes,  0 no, 1 absent.  Rep. Roers Jones is carrier. 
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